Registered number: 08173271

George Dixon Academy

Trustees' Report and Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 31 August 2022



A CONT



A05

23/12/2022 COMPANIES HOUSE

#17

Contents

·	Page	
Reference and Administrative Details	1 - 2	
Trustees' Report	3 - 17	
Governance Statement	18 - 27	
Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance	28	
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities	29	
Independent Auditors' Report on the Financial Statements	30 - 33	
Independent Reporting Accountant's Report on Regularity	34 - 35	
Statement of Financial Activities Incorporating Income and Expenditure Account	36	
Balance Sheet	37	
Statement of Cash Flows	38	
Notes to the Financial Statements	39 - 68 ·	

George Dixon Academy

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Reference and Administrative Details

Members

Sir R Dowling Mr B Kicks Mr M Proctor

Trustees

Sir R Dowling, Chair of Trustees¹
Mr B Kicks, Vice Chair of Trustees¹

Mr M Proctor, Chair of Finance & Audit Committee1

Dr E Insch

Mr A Hamilton, Headmaster and Accounting Officer (resigned 30 September

2021)1

Mr T Mann, Headteacher Pro Tem and Accounting Officer (appointed 1 October

2021), Headteacher (appointed 1 September 2022)1

Mrs G Bashir, Parent Governor (resigned 31 January 2022) Mrs S Akhtar, Parent Governor (resigned 31 January 2022) Ms C Elliott, Parent Governor (appointed 1 September 2022)

¹ Member of Finance and Audit Committee

Company registered

number

08173271

Company name

George Dixon Academy

Principal and registered

office

Portland Road Birmingham B16 9GD

Senior management

team

Mr T Mann, Headteacher Pro Tem (from 1 October 2021)

Headteacher (from 1 September 2022)

Mr A Hamilton, Headmaster (until 30 September 2021)

Mr D Horner, Acting Deputy Head Mr T Lowe, Acting Deputy Head Ms C Bernard, Assistant Head

Acting Deputy Head (from 1 November 2021)

Mrs K Collins, Assistant Head Mrs K Hull, Assistant Head

Ms K Darwood, Acting Assistant Head (from 1 November 2021) Mr G Pearce, Acting Assistant Head (from 1 November 2021) Mr J Pickard, Acting Assistant Head (from 1 November 2021) Mrs A Deutsch, Acting Assistant Head (from 1 January 2022) Mrs A Forder, Acting Head of Sixth Form (from 1 January 2022)

Mr T Lewis, Finance Director

Independent auditors

Dains Audit Limited 15 Colmore Row Birmingham B3 2BH

Bankers

Lloyds Bank Plc 25 Gresham Street

London EC2V 7HN

Reference and Administrative Details (continued) For the Year Ended 31 August 2022

Solicitors

Irwin Mitchell LLP

31 Temple Street Birmingham

B2 5DB

Internal auditors

RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP

10th Floor

103 Colmore Row Birmingham B3 3AG

Trustees' Report For the Year Ended 31 August 2022

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditors' report of the charitable company for the 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022. The annual report serves the purposes of both a Trustees' report and a directors' report under company law.

George Dixon Academy is a secondary school with a Sixth Form (Gda6) with 110 students and 1028 students in total, on-roll. It is situated in the Ladywood Ward of Birmingham, an area that experiences significantly high levels of socio-economic disadvantage. The proportion of students eligible for free school meals is almost three times the national average and the proportion of students with special educational needs and/or disabilities is slightly above average, with 1 student accessing an Educational Health and Care Plan (EHC). Students and staff come from an exceptionally diverse range of cultural backgrounds; a very large majority of students are from minority ethnic groups; two thirds of students speak English as an additional language (64%). Student mobility is also extremely high.

The average points score (APS)/average standardised score (ASS) upon entry is significantly negative in all year groups. The very low attainment on entry is further compounded by:

- the percentage eligible for free school meals in the past six years is in the top quintile.
- the percentage of pupils first language believed not to be English is in the top quintile.

The safety and wellbeing of students are paramount in the everyday work of the school, and social cohesion is at the heart of our endeavors. A full-time School-based social worker and full-time School Nurse are employed to work in a multi-agency approach so that our vulnerable students are properly supported inside and outside school. We draw upon remarkable diversity to create a community where students and adults show tolerance, consideration and respect for one another. There is a safe, calm, and positive climate, in which students are given the self-belief and motivation to succeed.

Structure, governance and management

a. Constitution

The Academy is a charitable company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company's memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the academy trust. The trustees of George Dixon Academy are also directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law. The charitable company operates as George Dixon Academy. The Academy is constituted under a Memorandum of Association dated 8 August 2012. The date Incorporated under the Companies Act 2006 as a private company, that the company is limited by guarantee is 9 August 2012. George Dixon Academy converted to academy status with effect from 1 September 2012.

Details of the Trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved, are included in the Reference and administrative details on page 1.

b. Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member.

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2022

Structure, governance and management (continued)

c. Trustees' indemnities

Since 1 September 2012 the Governors (directors) have been indemnified in respect of their legal liability for financial loss arising as a result of a negligent act, accidental error or omission in the course of their official duties. As explained in note 13 to the financial statements the limit of this indemnity is £10,000,000 for any one loss and any one membership year of the Risk Protection Arrangement with a retroactive date of 1st September 2012.

d. Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

George Dixon Academy operates open and transparent recruitment processes ensuring that vacancies are filled as soon as possible. Attention is also given to any identified skills gaps during the recruitment process to ensure the board has a good balance of the necessary skills to ensure the board remains effective in the execution of its duties also considering the succession plan and strategy in place.

The process for appointing or electing the various types of Governors at George Dixon Academy are as follows.

The Articles of Association requires that the number of Governors shall be not less than three but (unless otherwise determined by ordinary resolution) shall not be subject to any maximum.

1) Co-opted Governors – The Governors may appoint up to three Co-Opted Governors

A Co-opted Governor means a person who is appointed to be a Governor by being Co-opted by Governors who have not themselves who have not themselves been so appointed.

The Governors may not co-opt an employee of the Academy Trust as a Co-opted Governor if the number of Governors who are employed by the Academy Trust (including the Headteacher) would thereby exceed one third of the total number of Governors.

2) Parent Governors – The Articles of Association of provide for up to two Parent Governors.

Parent Governors are elected by parents of registered students at the Academy. A Parent Governor must be a parent of a student at the Academy at the time he/she is elected. Parent Governor vacancies are filled by an election process.

The number of Parent Governors required shall be made up by Parent Governors appointed by the Governing Body if the number of parents standing for election is less than the number of vacancies.

3) Appointment of Additional Governors

The Secretary of State may give a warning notice to the Governors where he is satisfied:

- i. That the standards of performance of pupils at the Academy are unacceptably low, or
- ii. That there has been a serious breakdown in the way the Academy is managed or governed, or
- iii. That the safety of pupils or staff of the academy is threatened (whether by a breakdown of discipline or otherwise).

For this purpose, a "warning notice" is a notice in writing by the Secretary of State to the Academy Trust delivered to the Office Setting out-

- a) The matters referred.
- b) The action which he requires the Governors to take to remedy those matters; and
- c) The period within which that action is to be taken by the Governors ("the compliance period").

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2022

Structure, governance and management (continued)

The Secretary of State may appoint such Additional Governors as he thinks fit if the Secretary of State has:

- a) Given the Governors a warning notice in accordance with the Articles of Association; and
- b) The Governors have failed to comply, or secure compliance, with the notice to the Secretary of State's satisfaction with the compliance period.

The Secretary of State may also appoint such Additional Governors where following an Inspection by the Chief Inspector in accordance with the Education Act 2005 (an "Inspection") the Academy Trust receives an Ofsted grading (being a grade referred to in The Framework for School Inspection or any modification if that document for the time being in force) which amounts to a drop, either from one Inspection to the next Inspection or between any two Inspections carried out within a 5 year period, of two Ofsted grades.

The Secretary of State may also appoint such further Governors as he thinks fit if a Special Measures Termination Event (as defined in the Funding Agreement) occurs in respect of the Academy.

Within 5 days of the Secretary of State appointing any Additional or Further Governors in accordance with the Articles of Association, any Trust Governors holding office immediately preceding the appointment of such Governors, shall resign immediately and the Members' power to appoint Governors under the Articles of Association shall remain suspended until the Secretary of State removes one or more of the Additional or Further Governors.

e. Policies adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

There is a Recruitment, Induction and Training Policy in place which outline's the Academy's approach in this area.

All Governors and Members receive details of training offered by School and Governor Support. These details are circulated by email and where Governors do attend training, they are encouraged to give verbal feedback at the next Governing Body meeting. The Governing Body of the Academy remains committed to providing adequate opportunities for Governors as and when possible and strongly encourages Governors to undertake independent training considered necessary as part of their continuing professional development. The Academy receives additional support through its subscription to School & Governor Support, which is a traded service of Birmingham City Council.

The Academy has appointed a Governor with specific responsibility for training.

The induction pack was updated and will be applied during the next period as new Governors are appointed to the Governing Body. Induction documents include but are not limited to background of the Academy, principles of good governance, roles and responsibilities of a director is provided by the Clerk and/or Chair, Governor's Code of Conduct and key documentation to be completed is also provided, including a letter of appointment outlining role descriptions and expectations to be agreed to. There is an opportunity for new Governors to tour the school (learning walk) and meet the members of the Senior Leadership Team. Policies related to recruitment and induction are included as part of an on-going review schedule to ensure they are updated and reviewed at appropriate intervals and remain in line with statutory and other regulatory guidance as well as being relevant to the changing needs of the Academy. A learning walk was conducted by the last Governors to be appointed. The process of induction and training also includes completion of DBS checks for all governors in line with the DfE Governance Handbook.

The Academy, from September 2021 has subscribed to National Online Safety provided by National Education Group Ltd that will further support Governor Training and Governor Induction.

Governors receive weekly emails of newsletters from School and Governor Support and the National Governance Association to assist in their maintaining the currency of their knowledge.

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2022

Structure, governance and management (continued)

Governors are issued with role descriptions as part of the induction process to ensure they are aware of what is required of them in their role. They also receive specific training on governance and are introduced to the code of conduct for governors.

The Academy Trust is a member of the National Governors' Association and complies with the relevant requirements to maintain its membership

f. Organisational structure

Before conversion to academy status on 1st September 2012, George Dixon Academy was a Foundation School, as defined in the Schools Standards and Framework Act 1998. The additional responsibilities of the Governing Body of the Academy Trust have been recognised and the structure amended accordingly.

Most of the roles and responsibility have been delegated to a committee, as defined by the Governing Body's Terms of Reference. Responsibilities for which the full Governing Body has retained responsibility are defined in the Governing Body's Terms of Reference.

Members of the Leadership Team, in addition to the Headteacher, attend the Governing Body and Finance and Audit Committee meetings as appropriate. The Governors are responsible for the strategic management of the Academy, deciding and setting key aspects of the Academy, including strategic direction, annual budgets, senior staff appointments and policy changes. Strategic and operational leadership is the responsibility of the Headteacher and the Leadership Team.

Academy policies are developed by senior members of the Academy's staff, to reflect both the strategic direction agreed by the Governors and statutory requirements. These policies are approved and adopted by the Governing Body or Committee and implemented with appropriate procedures by the Leadership Team and other designated staff.

The Governing Body met six times and the Finance & Audit Committee met three times in the last year.

g. Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The Headteachers pay is directly linked to Academy performance. The Academy Trust, will, in consultation with an independent educational consultant set performance targets which are measurable, time limited and meet the needs and the priorities for further improvement. Outcomes in examinations for both disadvantaged and non-disadvantaged students will always play a pivotal role in the determination of pay. A formal performance review will be conducted by the independent educational consultant who will present his findings to the Academy Trust. The Academy Trust will decide whether remuneration is warranted.

Trustees' Report (continued) For the Year Ended 31 August 2022

Structure, governance and management (continued)

h. Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials during the year Full-time equivalent employee number

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time	Number of employees	
0% 1%-50% 51%-99% 100%	:	
Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time	£	
Total cost of facility time Total pay bill Percentage of total pay bill spent on facility time	7,002,434 -	%
Paid trade union activities		
Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility time hours	-	%

Trustees' Report (continued) For the Year Ended 31 August 2022

Objectives and activities

a. Objects and aims

We are determined,
we respect each other,
we encourage one another,
we accept the new,
we all matter.

Our Commitment to dream.

- 1. To be the best version of ourselves (as teachers/professionals) that we can be: we will strive for consistently exemplary teaching and support, through continuous improvements to our practice.
- 2. To realise the potential in everyone: we will enable all young people to thrive at our school and beyond, through an outstanding curriculum, consistently high standards of teaching and personalised support.
- 3. To be leaders & educators who aspire to excellence: we will consistently set high standards for ourselves, our colleagues and all our pupils and support each other in working towards them.
- 4. To provide a rich range of learning opportunities and experiences: through our curriculum, we will consistently support all pupils to develop as confident, responsible, and articulate learners and citizens, and to reveal and develop their inner strengths, enabling them to thrive at school and beyond.
- 5. To consistently deliver outstanding leadership and governor support which underpins and enables our community's work: we will ensure a focus on the school's key objectives, ensuring value for money in all areas, without any compromise on our standards/expectations.

b. Public benefit

The Governors have considered the Charity Commission's guidance on Public Benefit. The key public benefit delivered by George Dixon Academy is the maintenance and the development of high-quality education. It is the Trustees' aim to deliver outstanding learning to all its students and it is a priority to ensure the public benefit for all inhabitants in Edgbaston and surrounding area.

In doing this, the George Dixon Academy not only offers a broad-based academic education but aims to educate the whole individual. A very wide range of extra-curricular activities and educational trips and visits are offered to students.

Strategic report

Achievements and performance

a. Review of activities

Students enter the Academy at age eleven and at other times of the year with prior attainment which is significantly lower than the national average in all year groups. *is significantly lower than the national average in years 7,10 & 11 (due to the pandemic years 8 & 9 have no prior attainment) The reading ages for the majority of children are far below their chronological ages. On average, they are 2 years behind their chronological reading age.

In 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019, students made consistently good progress as evidenced by positive Progress8 scores as follows: (+0.15 in 2015; +0.22 in 2016; +0.11 in 2017; +0.22 in 2018; and, +0.51 in 2019).

Although national data has not been produced for 2020 and 2021, national progress figures for the CAGs

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2022

Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)

awarded in 2020 and the TAGs awarded in 2021 have been applied using 2019 national progress data. While this data has not been validated, it suggests a continued positive trajectory as follows: 2020 CAGs +0.51 and 2021 TAGs +0.89.

Our Attainment8 score has improved from 38.77 in 2017 to 41.33 in 2018 to 43.7 in 2019. In 2020, our CAG calculated Attainment8 score was 41.8 which was adjusted to 43.2 following the abandonment of the national algorithm.

All things being equal, we would have expected to maintain our "well above average status" in the DfE "Compare School Performance Service" rankings, if examinations would have taken place in 2020 and 2021.

In 2022 the students at the Academy achieved a strong provisional Progress8 score of +0.35, this is significantly above the national average. This continues the positive trend since 2015 (Opt-in). The students also achieved positive provisional progress scores across all other areas of the Progress8 measure as follows: +0.53 in Maths (significantly above the national average); +0.21 in English; +0.62 in Ebacc (significantly above the national average); and, +0.07 in Open.

The Attainment8 score for 2022 was 42.64 provisionally. Both attainment measures grades 4+ and 5+ in English and Maths were at the highest the Academy has recorded in the last three years (excluding 2020 & 2021). The information below demonstrates that GCSE progress has been sustained over a six-year period (2022 performance data should not be directly compared with the performance data from 2019 and earlier):

All	2015	2016	2017	2018	2019	2022
Students	Opt-in					Provisional
Overall	+0.18	+0.22	+0.11	+0.22	+0.51	+0.35
Progress8						,
Maths	+0.12	+0.30	+0.20	+0.04	+0.55	+0.53
IVIAUIS	+0.12	+0.30	+0.20	+0.04	+0.55	+0.53
English	-0.16	-0.23	+0.15	+0.00	+0.28	+0.21
Ebacc	+0.91	+0.72	+0.43	+0.37	+0.97	+0.62
Open	-0.29	-0.02	-0.29	+0.36	+0.19	+0.07

The information below demonstrates the anticipated trajectory of GCSE progress during the Covid-19 pandemic period with associated CAG's (2020) and TAG's (2021). These are, however, unvalidated and should be viewed with appropriate caution:

Trustees' Report (continued) For the Year Ended 31 August 2022

Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)

All	2019	2020	2021 (TAG)*
Students		(CAG)*	
Overall	+0.51	+0.51	+0.89
Progress8			
Maths	+0.55	+0.44	+0.81
English	+0.28	+0.23	+0.68
Ebacc	+0.97	+0.64	+1.11
Open	+0.19	+0.61	+0.85

^{*2020 (}CAG) and 2021 (TAG) progress figures are based on our academy attainment value of 41.8 using 2019 national progress data.

Disadvantaged students continue to achieve a top quintile ranking.

Disadvantaged students continue to make good progress at KS4. The Progress8 figure for this group in 2019 was +0.44, surpassing the positive trend set in previous years (+0.20 in 2016, +0.22 in 2017 and +0.21 in 2018). Our 2020 CAGs P8 score of +0.36 and 2021 TAGs P8 score of +0.72 replicates our established pattern of improvement.

Disadvantaged students continue to make good progress at KS4. The Progress8 score for this group in 2022 was +0.33, continuing the positive trend set in previous years (+0.20 in 2016, +0.22 in 2017, +0.21 in 2018 and +0.44 in 2019).

The information below demonstrates that GCSE progress for our disadvantaged pupils has been sustained over a six-year period (2022 performance data should not be directly compared with the performance data from 2019 and earlier):

Disadvantaged	2015 Opt-in .	2016	2017	2018	2019	2022
Overall Progress 8	+0.23	+0.20	+0.22	+0.21	+0.44	+0.33
Maths	+0.16	+0.23	+0.25	+0.00	+0.54	+0.53
English	-0.07	-0.22	+0.27	-0.10	+0.13	+0.19
Ebacc	+0.96	+0.70	+0.57	+0.32	+0.88	+0.59
Open	-0.26	-0.03	-0.19	+0.45	+0.15	+0.04

The information below demonstrates the anticipated trajectory of GCSE progress for our disadvantaged pupils during the Covid-19 pandemic period with associated CAGs (2020) and TAGs (2021). These are, as aforementioned, unvalidated and should be viewed with appropriate caution:

Trustees' Report (continued) For the Year Ended 31 August 2022

Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)

Disadvantaged	2019	2020	2021
,		(CAG)*	(TAG)*
Overall Progress 8	+0.44	+0.36	+0.72
Maths	+0.54	+0.17	+0.48
English	+0.13	+0.19	+0.55
Ebacc	+0.88	+0.35	+1.02
Open	+0.15	+0.60	+0.70

^{*2020 (}CAG) and 2021 (TAG) progress figures are based on our academy attainment value of 41.8 using 2019 national progress data.

Outcomes at GCE

Due to Covid-19 Value-Added data was not produced for the 2022 cohort.

The 2019 GCE results were the best that the academy has ever achieved at A-Level. The highly positive overall Value-Added score of +0.54 ensures that George Dixon Academy Sixth Form remained in the top 10% nationally for progress for a second consecutive year. Progress and attainment have significantly improved across almost all subjects.

George Dixon Academy finished at the top of the value-added performance table for all Birmingham Sixth Form Schools and Colleges in 2019.

Overall attainment has improved from a D grade in 2016 to a C+ in 2019.

Headline measures included in the table below represent the performance of different groups.

	2018	2019	Trend
Overall Value-added Score	+0.3	+0.54	1
Disadvantaged Value-added Score	+0.3	+0.41	1
C at KS4 Value-added Score	+0.7	+1.26	1
B at KS4 Value-added Score	+0.1	+0.48	1
A & above at KS4 Value-added Score	-0.3	+0.32	1
Average Point Score	26.4	31.83	1
Average Point Score represented as a grade	C-	C+	1

As a result of the cancellation of exams in 2020 and 2021, leaders at the Academy took the necessary steps to ensure that Centre Assessed Grades (CAG's) in 2020 and Teacher Assessed Grades (TAG's) were accurately collected.

Trustees' Report (continued) For the Year Ended 31 August 2022

Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)

Using the information that was available to us, i.e., internal assessments, mock examinations and completed non-examination assessments, teachers provided the 'most likely' grade for the students. Formal standardisation and moderation procedures ensured high levels of accuracy.

Where concerns about overzealous grading arose, further scrutiny and moderation took place.

Once all leaders were confident that the grades were fair, accurate and beyond reproach, teachers met 'face-to-face' to rank order students who had been awarded the same grade. The evolutionary and collaborative work, in relation to CAGs and TAGs, by leaders throughout 2020 and 2021 ensured the Academy completed this process correctly.

Attainment

Attainment at A-Level has improved annually since 2016. Between 2017 and 2019, there was a significant increase in attainment across almost all A-Level subjects with APS increasing from D+ in 2017 to C+ in 2019. Despite no validated examinations in 2020 and 2021, our expectations were high for the respective Year 13 cohorts. Despite the disruption that Covid-19 caused, our attainment for 2022 remained at the high levels achieved in 2019 at grade C.

Progress in the sixth form has also improved greatly. The table below illustrates the progress of students at the academy between 2017 to 2019:

Value Added Scores 2017 - 2019

	2017	2018	2019
A-Levels (VA)	0.00	+0.3	+0.54
Number of entries	47	104	107
Applied General (VA)	n/a	1.0	1.6
Number of entries	n/a	4	4

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2022

Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)

b. Key performance indicators

The Governors of the Academy Trust agreed the key financial performance indicators for 2022-2023

- To approve the achievement of balanced budget for the financial year, that can draw on unspent funds brought forward from previous years
- To receive, monitor and scrutinise monthly management accounts, prepared on an accruals basis to understand and address variances between the budget forecast and actual income and expenditure. A monthly finance report includes cash reporting, cash flow and cash days reporting. The monthly finance report will continue to include additional KPI reporting.
- Monitor the utilisation of Designated Funds through Capital Expenditure.
 The Governors receive a Monthly Finance Report that included details of the capital expenditure approved and assigned against each designated fund.
- Achieving value for money through effective financial procedures. The Academy in addition to its own Financial Regulations Manual produces an Academy Staff Finance Handbook including Guidance Notes for Budget Holders as well as a separate Business Charge Card Policy & Procedures for Internet Ordering.
- The Academy will benchmark, including utilising the View my financial insights (VFMI) tool and seek to use
 procurement channels, including the Government Guidance for buying goods and services and finding DfE
 recommended suppliers.
- The Governors on a Monthly and Year to Date basis monitors individual Key Performance indicators against those budgeted.

Additional KPIs including, attendance, punctuality, student recruitment are also monitored and benchmarked.

c. Going concern

After making appropriate enquires the board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

Financial review

Review

Most of the Academy's Income is obtained from the Department for Education via the Education and Skills Funding Agency in the form of its General Annual Grant (GAG) the use of which is restricted to purposes i.e., the objects of the Academy Trust. The GAG received during this period covered by this report and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

The Academy also benefits from Pupil Premium funding provided to the Academy which is in addition to its GAG Funding. This additional funding is used to support pupils from low-income families to raise educational attainment.

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2022

Strategic report (continued)

The Academy additionally benefited from the supplementary grant to the Health and Social Care Levy and wider costs. The Academy also received a Recovery Grant to pupils whose education had been impacted by coronavirus (COVID-19).

The Academy was successful in a Condition Improvement Funding Bids in the year to 31 August 2020 and again in the year to 31 August 2021, for the prevention of water ingress at the Academy. The Academy committed to contributing from its reserves as part of both the successful bids. Practical Completion on Phase 1 was achieved in July 2021. Phase 2 as of 31 August 2022, is yet to achieve Practical Completion.

On conversion on 1 September 2012, all the fixed assets of the former Foundation school were transferred to the new Academy Trust and were shown as restricted asset funds. The balance sheet restricted fixed asset fund is reduced by depreciation charges over the expected useful life of the assets concerned.

Expenditure for the period covered by this report was covered by the GAG and other income and investment income.

The combined General Restricted Fund and Unrestricted Fund show an operating surplus (Excluding the defined pension scheme liability), of £1,626,482.

a. Reserves policy

The Governors review the reserves levels of the Academy at least annually. The Governors have a Capital and Revenue Reserves Policy.

The Governors have reviewed again the level of funds designated after expenditure in 2021-2022 to address matters identified as Building Condition Risk and for use in upcoming projects and have determined a Capital Reserve of £968,160.

The Purpose of the Capital Reserve is to address the Health and Safety Building Condition Risk and is therefore for works outside the scope of the completed construction works associated with Building Schools for the Future Funding. This reserve will continue to fund the lifecycle aspect of the Buildings the Assets and Equipment within it, including elements if the Academy is unlikely or unable to secure funding via The Condition Improvement Fund (CIF).

The Trust has determined the following designations of the Capital Reserve: for 2022/23

Roof Repairs £200,000. The purpose of this designation is to replace and repair the roof where the Academy in many areas suffers from water ingress. The Academy was successful in a bid for Condition Improvement Funding during in the year ended 31 August 2020. This was for the phase 1 repair and replacement to roofs, with practical completion achieved in year ending 31 August 2021. The Academy's Contribution to Phase 1 of £150,000 has been already accounted for in the year ending 31 August 2021. The Academy was successful in the year ending 31 August 2022 in a Phase 2 Condition Improvement Funding Bid and a second £150,000 contribution towards the Phase 2 roof works was made In the year 31 August 2022. The designated fund in the reserves includes for a contribution to a Phase 3 Roof Bid the Academy will be making in December 2022 and for further roof repairs to areas of the school not included in the three condition improvement funding bids

Plant and Other Premises Expenditure £617,601. This reserve is for Plant, Premises and other Assets that will require repair or replacement. This reserve is expended on a monthly basis with a wide range of life cycling and individual projects having been completed in the year to 31 August 2022. The Academy is considering at carbon neutral options and any contribution will be taken from this designated fund

ICT Refreshment £86,326. The Academy with effect from 31 August 2019 early terminated the Building Schools for the Future, ICT Management Contract. ICT refreshments and upgrades are no longer be funded from a Building for the Future Local Choice Fund, the effect of which was that the Academy is having to fund these from

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2022

its own resources.

Fire Compliance £43,080. The Academy has committed to a project to address outcomes from the latest Fire Risk Assessment. This project is concerned with Fire Doors and Fire Stopping. Practical completion and settlement of the final account was not achieved at 31 August 2022.

The Governors have also determined that it will carry a Revenue Reserve at a prudent level of resource designed to meet the long-term cyclical needs of renewal of items and any other unforeseen contingencies.

b. Investment policy

The Academy has an Investment & Treasury Management Policy. The Academy's risk appetite is low and it will focus on security ahead of liquidity and yield.

Investments only in 32 Day Notice and High Interest Deposit Accounts with Lloyds Bank were made in the period to 31 August 2021. All funds held by the Academy as at 31 August 2022 were in interest bearing accounts with Lloyds Bank.

c. Principal risks and uncertainties

The Academy's Risk Management Strategy aims to ensure that the Academy complies with risk management and with the requirements of the Turnbull guidance.

The Academy uses a 3x3 matrix to assess impact and probability as high, medium, or low. The Academy's risk threshold is represented by scores of 6 and above in the risk matrix. Above this threshold, the Academy will actively seek to manage risks and will prioritise time and resources to reducing, avoiding, or mitigating these risks.

The Key Risks identified are:

Health and Safety Risk – Building Condition. The Academy despite being one of the last Building Schools for the Future Projects has areas outside the scope of works for example Roofing and Roof Guttering that present a Health & Safety risk. In mitigation the Academy has commenced and will continue a programme of work utilising its own reserves as well as to submit Condition Funding Bids (CIF) to the Educational Funding Agency.

The Academy continues to suffer water increase in many areas of the school and in mitigation successfully worked with an external organisation two condition improvement fund bid (CIF) for replacement and repair of the roofs. The Academy intends to submit a third condition improvement bid to complete the roof works on the school, including its oldest parts dating back to 1905.

The Academy's Fire Risk assessment highlighted that capital expenditure is needed to meet fire compliance and in mitigation it has in the year ended 31st August 2022 been replacing fire doors throughout the academy

Operational Risk – Information Security Risk. The Academy continues to hold training sessions on the UK General Data Protection Regulation (UK GDPR) with new and existing staff. The Academy has deployed Microsoft Bit locker to all computers within the Academy to encrypt all USB connected devices. All staff laptops are encrypted. In addition, staff are advised to ensure UK GDPR compliance when working from home or remotely. In mitigation the academy continues to follow its policy and procedures on paper-based records. The Academy has engaged an external organisation to support its ongoing UK GDPR compliance journey. Cyber Security remains high on the agenda with the academy's reliance on IT and online systems.

COCID-19 Risks – The Academy will continue to follow government guidance and inform families and other stakeholders as it has throughout the pandemic.

Finance Risk – Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) Funding. The Academy is reliant on the funding it receives from the ESFA. This funding is pupil led. The Academy will continue to actively recruit in all areas of the

Trustees' Report (continued) For the Year Ended 31 August 2022

Academy but especially through its transitional arrangements into Year 7 and Sixth Form to mitigate the risk of loss of funding. The Academy has modelled changes in the in the amount of Pupil Led Funding because of changes in funding rates and is aware of a change in the profile of pupils eligible for FSM at the Academy and the impact for 2022/23 and likely impacts on various funding streams in future. The Academy is reliant on the continuation of the Pupil Premium Grant and not being negatively impacted by funding formula. The Academy produces and submits a 3-year forecast to the ESFA.

Finance Risk - Staffing Related Costs.

The Academy is facing unprecedented costs pressures with unfunded pay increases for both teaching and support staff due to the cost of living and inflationary pressures. These settlements will be above the original budgeted allowances for the year ending 31st August 2022. In mitigation the current known figures have been modelled through the Academy's Budget Software to inform decision making.

From April 2016 with the introduction of the new flat rate State pension, the State second pension ceased and the ability for employers to contract out of the State second pension and receive a national insurance rebate of 3.4% ended. This effective 3.4% increase in National Insurance (between the lower earnings limit and upper accrual point for National Insurance) continues apply to all staff who are members of one of these contracted out schemes. Teachers' Pension costs for the Academy increased from the 14.1% employer contribution rate to 16.48% with effect from September 2015 to 23.68% in September 2019. The triennial valuation of the West Midland Pension Fund scheme at 31 March 2016 resulted in a future service employer contribution rate of 16.7% from 1 April 2017 plus an increase past service lump sum advised, this has further increased staffing costs. A further triennial valuation of the West Midlands Pension Fund took effect from 1 April 2020 and led to an increase in the employer contribution rate to 21% and an increase in the past service lump sum. The next West Midlands Pension Fund Triennial Valuation will take effect 1 April 2023, the outcome of which will impact in on the Academy's finances.

The Academy faced a 1.25% additional National Insurance change from April 2022. However, this has been reversed by the Government with effect from 6th November 2022. This post budget change has been modelled in the Academy's budgeting software. It is not clear, and therefore a financial risk, as to whether the Supplementary Grant that was issued to cover this additional Health and Social Care Levy and wider costs will continue at the previously advised sum.

Regular monthly monitoring of staff cost related KPI's, together with more detailed analysis of staffing costs is undertaken with the Headteacher to mitigate these risks. The Academy Trust Board receive a detailed Monthly Finance Report that exceeds the requirements of the current Academies Trust Handbook 2022.

The principal risks to the Academy all have a financial impact. In addition to short notice to budgetary allocations and funding formulae from the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) may have on financial planning. There are the usual risks associated with potential fraud, damage to reputation and failure to maintain and improve academic standards but control measures have been put in place to mitigate these risks.

Under Financial Reporting Standard Number 102, it is necessary to change projected deficits on the Local Government Pension Scheme, which provided for support staff, to the restricted general fund. This results in reducing the reserves shown in the total funds of the Academy. It should be noted that this does not present the Academy with any current liquidity problem. The Academy is currently paying an increased employer contribution rate to reduce this deficit.

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2022

Fundraising

The academy trust carries out a limited amount of fundraising and only for named charities, mindful of the communities within which it operates. In the circumstances when fundraising is undertaken, systems and controls are in place to separate and protect funds. The trust is mindful of its responsibilities under the Charities (Protection and Social Investment) Act 2016 and legal rules, and ensures all activities are agreed and monitored at Senior Leadership Team level in compliance with relevant legal rules. Recognised standards are applied to ensure that fundraising is open, honest and respectful, protecting the public from undue pressure to donate. Complaints would be handled and monitored through the Trust's complaints procedure.

Plans for future periods

George Dixon Academy will continue to work to improve the achievements for all students both academically and in its role to prepare them to make a positive contribution to society.

We will continue to build upon successes and serve our community well.

Since conversion to an Academy, the governors have demonstrated good financial management which has allowed them to invest and significantly improve the quality of the school. Plans are being considered to further enhance the environment at the Academy.

Funds held as custodian on behalf of others

During the period ending 31 August 2022 George Dixon Academy did not hold any funds as a custodian trustee on behalf of any other charitable organisation.

Disclosure of information to auditors

Insofar as the Trustees are aware:

- there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unaware, and
- that Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.

Auditors

The Trustees, having been notified of the cessation of the partnership known as Dains LLP, resolved that Dains Audit Limited be appointed as successor auditor with effect from 1 April 2022. The auditors, Dains Audit Limited, will be proposed for reappointment at a meeting of the Trustees.

The Trustees' Report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the company directors, on 7 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Sir Robert Dowling Chair of Trustees

Governance Statement

Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that George Dixon Academy has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and competency framework for governance.

The board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Headteacher, as accounting officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between George Dixon Academy and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The board of Trustees has formally met 6 times during the year.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee	Meetings attended	Out of a possible
Sir R Dowling, Chair of Trustees	6	6
Mr B Kicks, Vice Chair of Trustees	5	6
Mr M Proctor	5	6 .
Dr E Insch	5	6
Mr A Hamilton, Headmaster and Accounting	0	0
Officer		
Mr T Mann, Headteacher Pro Tem and	6	6
Accounting Officer		•
Mrs G Bashir, Parent Governor	0	2
Mrs S Akhtar, Parent Governor	0	2
Ms C Elliott, Parent Governor	0	0

Governance reviews:

The Academy has undertaken robust governance assessments to ensure that the governance systems and processes that are in place and are helping to promote the long-term success of the Academy, that strategic planning is being undertaken and that there is a plan in place to monitor the governance activity.

Having due regard to the Covid 19 pandemic the Academy recognised that it needed to engage with its two parent trustees who had not attended a meeting during the 12 months to 31st August 2021. After further non-attendance at two possible meetings both Parent Governors made the decision to resign with effect from 31st January 2022.

The Academy Board, following a well-publicised nomination and election process, was unable to fill the two parent governor vacancies. Therefore, in accordance with the academy's articles, the trust board appointed a new parent governor with effect from 1st September 2022.

The Academy in accordance with both its Articles and the Academy Trust Handbook 2022 has one parent vacancy still to fill. The Academy's Governance Professional will work with the Trust Board to address this vacancy in the next period.

In the first month of the year ending 31st August 2022, the Academy's Headmaster and Accounting Officer

Governance Statement (continued)

Governance (continued)

resigned. This vacancy was filled by a Headteacher pro-tem, and Accounting Officer with effect from 1st October 2021 and now in a substantive post.

The Academy's appointed Internal Auditors, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP undertook an audit of the Academy's Governance Framework 2020. In the year ended 31st August 2021 and 31st August 2022 RSM carried out a "Key Operational Controls" audit. This audit covered both Governance and Finance. The academy is working to address the management actions from the latest audit.

In the year ending 31st August 2022 the Academy carried out a self-evaluation via use of the National Governance Associations twenty questions for Boards. The Academy's Governance Professional will feed back the results to the Chair and the Board in the next period.

The Academy subscribes to Birmingham's School and Governor Support Service and the National Governance Association ensuring that professional advice-is always accessible.

Training opportunities are regularly circulated to Governors making certain that they can update their skills, understand the education sector and raise their awareness of statutory requirements. The Academy has appointed a Governor with responsibility for training. The Trustees also receive weekly newsletters from both School and Governor Support and the National Governance Association to maintain the currency of their knowledge.

The Academy additionally are member of the Confederation of School Trusts

The Academy, from September 2021 has subscribed to National Online Safety provided by National Education Group Ltd that will further support Governor Training and Governor Induction.

Governors and Members continue to receive adequate and appropriate information from the Headteacher and other Members of the Senior Leadership Team. Information is openly challenged in Governing Body and Committee meetings and further clarification requested when necessary.

The Chair for the year ending 31st August 2023, with agreement of the Board has designated, that three Trust Board meeting will be dedicated to curriculum as an agenda.

Work continues developing the risk management processes across the Academy. This process is being overseen by the Governing Body.

The Academy distributes by email a monthly finance report to the full Governing Body. This is beyond the compliance requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2022. The Chair of the Trust is in regular contact with the Headteacher (Accounting Officer) on at least a weekly basis. The Chair attends the Academy on a regular basis, including to discuss major expenditure and speaks to Senior Leaders and other staff during his visits.

Governance Statement (continued)

Governance (continued)

The **Finance & Audit Committee** is a sub-committee of the main board of trustees. Its purpose is to assist in the decision making of the Governing Body, by enabling more detailed consideration to be given to the best means of fulfilling the Governing Body's responsibility to ensure sound management of academy's finance and resources, including proper planning, monitoring and probity and to make appropriate comments and recommendations on such matters to the main board of trustees on a regular basis.

Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Trustee	Meetings attended	Out of a possible
Sir R Dowling	3	3
Mr B Kicks	2	3
Mr A Hamilton	0 .	0
Mr M Proctor	2	3
Mr T Mann	3	3

Review of value for money

As accounting officer, the Headteacher has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy delivers good value in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money each academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be improved, including the use of benchmarking where appropriate. The accounting officer for the academy trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

In 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019, students made consistently good progress as evidenced by positive Progress8 scores as follows: (+0.15 in 2015; +0.22 in 2016; +0.11 in 2017; +0.22 in 2018; and, +0.51 in 2019).

Although national data has not been produced for 2020 and 2021, national progress figures for the CAGs awarded in 2020 and the TAGs awarded in 2021 have been applied using 2019 national progress data. While this data has not been validated, it suggests a continued positive trajectory as follows: 2020 CAGs +0.51 and 2021 TAGs +0.89.

Our Attainment8 score has improved from 38.77 in 2017 to 41.33 in 2018 to 43.7 in 2019. In 2020, our CAG calculated Attainment8 score was 41.8 which was adjusted to 43.2 following the abandonment of the national algorithm.

All things being equal, we would have expected to maintain our "well above average status" in the DfE "Compare School Performance Service" rankings, if examinations would have taken place in 2020 and 2021.

In 2022 the students at the Academy achieved a strong provisional Progress8 score of +0.35, this is significantly above the national average. This continues the positive trend since 2015 (Opt-in). The students also achieved positive provisional progress scores across all other areas of the Progress8 measure as follows: +0.53 in Maths (significantly above the national average); +0.21 in English; +0.62 in Ebacc (significantly above the national average); and, +0.07 in Open.

The Attainment8 score for 2022 was 42.64 provisionally. Both attainment measures grades 4+ and 5+ in English and Maths were at the highest the Academy has recorded in the last three years (excluding 2020 & 2021).

The information below demonstrates that GCSE progress has been sustained over a six-year period (2022 performance data should not be directly compared with the performance data from 2019 and earlier):

Governance Statement (continued)

Review of value for money (continued)

All Students	2015 Opt-in	2016	2017	2018	2019	2022 Provisional
Overall Progress8	+0.18	+0.22	+0.11	+0.22	+0.51	+0.35
Maths	+0.12	+0.30	+0.20	+0.04	+0.55	+0.53
English	-0.16	-0.23	+0.15	+0.00	+0.28	+0.21
Ebacc	+0.91	+0.72	+0.43	+0.37	+0.97	+0.62
Open	-0.29	-0.02	-0.29	+0.36	+0.19	+0.07

The information below demonstrates the anticipated trajectory of GCSE progress during the Covid-19 pandemic period with associated CAG's (2020) and TAG's (2021). These are, however, unvalidated and should be viewed with appropriate caution:

All Students	2019	2020 (CAG)*	2021 (TAG)*
Overall Progress8	+0.51	+0.51	+0.89
Maths	+0.55	+0.44	+0.81
English	+0.28	+0.23	+0.68
Ebacc	+0.97	÷0.64	+1.11
Open	+0.19	+0.61	+0.85

^{*2020 (}CAG) and 2021 (TAG) progress figures are based on our academy attainment value of 41.8 using 2019 national progress data.

Disadvantaged students continue to achieve a top quintile ranking.

Disadvantaged students continue to make good progress at KS4. The Progress8 figure for this group in 2019 was +0.44, surpassing the positive trend set in previous years (+0.20 in 2016, +0.22 in 2017 and +0.21 in 2018). Our 2020 CAGs P8 score of +0.36 and 2021 TAGs P8 score of +0.72 replicates our established pattern of improvement.

Disadvantaged students continue to make good progress at KS4. The Progress8 score for this group in 2022 was +0.33, continuing the positive trend set in previous years (+0.20 in 2016, +0.22 in 2017, +0.21 in 2018 and +0.44 in 2019).

The information below demonstrates that GCSE progress for our disadvantaged pupils has been sustained over a six-year period (2022 performance data should not be directly compared with the performance data from 2019 and earlier):

Governance Statement (continued)

Review of value for money (continued)

Disadvantaged	2015 Opt-in	2016	2017	2018	2019	2022
Overall Progress 8	+0.23	+0.20	+0.22	+0.21	+0.44	+0.33
Maths	+0.16	+0.23	+0.25	+0.00	+0.54	+0.53
English	-0.07	-0.22	+0.27	-0.10	+0.13	+0.19
Ebacc	+0.96	+0.70	+0.57	+0.32	+0.88	+0.59
Open	-0.26	-0.03	-0.19	+0.45	+0.15	+0.04

The information below demonstrates the anticipated trajectory of GCSE progress for our disadvantaged pupils during the Covid-19 pandemic period with associated CAGs (2020) and TAGs (2021). These are, as aforementioned, unvalidated and should be viewed with appropriate caution:

Disadvantaged	2019	2020	2021
		(CAG)*	(TAG)*
Overall Progress 8	+0.44	+0.36	+0.72
Maths	+0.54	+0.17	+0.48
English	+0.13	+0.19	+0.55
Ebacc	+0.88	+0.35	+1.02
Open	+0.15	+0.60	+0.70

^{*2020 (}CAG) and 2021 (TAG) progress figures are based on our academy attainment value of 41.8 using 2019 national progress data.

Outcomes at GCE

Due to Covid-19 Value-Added data was not produced for the 2022 cohort.

The 2019 GCE results were the best that the academy has ever achieved at A-Level. The highly positive overall Value-Added score of +0.54 ensures that George Dixon Academy Sixth Form remained in the top 10% nationally for progress for a second consecutive year. Progress and attainment have significantly improved across almost all subjects.

George Dixon Academy finished at the top of the value-added performance table for all Birmingham Sixth Form Schools and Colleges in 2019.

Overall attainment has improved from a D grade in 2016 to a C+ in 2019.

Headline measures included in the table below represent the performance of different groups.

Governance Statement (continued)

Review of value for money (continued)

	2018	2019	Trend
Overall Value-added Score	+0.3	+0.54	1
Disadvantaged Value-added Score .	+0.3	+0.41	1
C at KS4 Value-added Score	+0.7	+1.26	1
B at KS4 Value-added Score	+0.1	+0.48	1
A & above at KS4 Value-added Score	-0.3	+0.32	1
Average Point Score	26.4	31.83	1
Average Point Score represented as a grade	C-	C+	1

As a result of the cancellation of exams in 2020 and 2021, leaders at the Academy took the necessary steps to ensure that Centre Assessed Grades (CAG's) in 2020 and Teacher Assessed Grades (TAG's) were accurately collected.

Using the information that was available to us, i.e., internal assessments, mock examinations and completed non-examination assessments, teachers provided the 'most likely' grade for the students. Formal standardisation and moderation procedures ensured high levels of accuracy.

Where concerns about overzealous grading arose, further scrutiny and moderation took place.

Once all leaders were confident that the grades were fair, accurate and beyond reproach, teachers met 'face-to-face' to rank order students who had been awarded the same grade. The evolutionary and collaborative work, in relation to CAGs and TAGs, by leaders throughout 2020 and 2021 ensured the Academy completed this process correctly.

Attainment

Attainment at A-Level has improved annually since 2016. Between 2017 and 2019, there was a significant increase in attainment across almost all A-Level subjects with APS increasing from D+ in 2017 to C+ in 2019. Despite no validated examinations in 2020 and 2021, our expectations were high for the respective Year 13 cohorts. Despite the disruption that Covid-19 caused, our attainment for 2022 remained at the high levels achieved in 2019 at grade C.

Progress in the sixth form has also improved greatly. The table below illustrates the progress of students at the academy between 2017 to 2019:

George Dixon Academy	
(A Company Limited by Guarantee))

Governance Statement (continued)

Review of value for money (continued)

Value Added Scores 2017 - 2019

	2017	2018	2019
A-Levels (VA)	0.00	+0.3	+0.54
Number of entries	47	104	107
Applied General (VA)	n/a	1.0	1.6
Number of entries	n/a	4	4

2. Financial Governance and Oversight

The Academy benefits from the provision of Internal Audit Services provided by RSM. The Scope of the Internal Audit for the Governance Framework audit included for 5 Days Fieldwork in 2020 and 5 days of Fieldwork on Key Operational Controls audit encompassing Governance and Finance in 2021 and 2022. This was work was agreed with the Finance & Audit Committee on a Risk Based and Core Assurance Programme.

The effectiveness of the system of Internal Controls is also informed by the work of the Academy's External Auditors, Dains Audit Limited.

The Finance & Audit Committee and Governing Body receives monthly Finance Reports in line with the Academy's Financial Regulations.

The Academy operations are within approved Accounting Policies and Scheme of Delegation.

3. Demonstrating Good Value for Money and Efficient and Effective Use of Resources

The Academy continues to apply the four principles of Best Value: To Challenge, To Compare, To Consult and To Compete.

In doing this the Academy takes advantage of Framework Agreements and several Purchasing Consortia of which it is a member or customer. The Academy is aware of a range of support tools provided by the DfE, including Government Guidance for buying goods and services and finding DfE recommended suppliers to utilise. The Academy is aware of and participated in webinars organised by the DfE's School Commercial Team.

The Academy, in addition to its own Financial Regulations Manual produces an Academy Staff Finance Handbook including guidance notes for budget holders as well as a separate Business Charge Card Policy & Procedure for Internet Ordering. The Academy has in place a Procurement and Tendering Policy.

The Academy holds autumn briefing session with budget holders on the Academy Staff Finance Handbook, Business Charge Card & internet ordering procedures. A section on Anti-Fraud & Corruption is included in the briefing session.

The Academy's Financial Regulations and Scheme of Delegation details the authorisation limits for both procurement and for sale and disposal of assets.

George Dixo	n Academy	
(A Company	Limited by	Guarantee)

Governance Statement (continued)

Review of value for money (continued)

A file is maintained of services and contracts. The Academy retains quotations for goods, works and services. Some examples of where quotations and tenders have been obtained that vary widely in value, and include:

- The Academy in the year undertook a quotation process evaluating cloud-based Financial Management Systems. From September 2023 the Academy has migrated its financial accounts to Access Education Finance, which links directly to the Access Education Budget Software the Academy has been using for many years. The Academy at the same time adopted the DfE Chart of Accounts.
- The Academy undertook a quotation exercise for its Veeam back up licences that were previously purchased by Lendlease ICT through the Building Schools for the Future Funding stream that has ceased.
- The Academy undertook a quotation exercise utilising the Crescent Purchasing Consortium's quotation tool for the procurement of 93 PCs.
- The Academy undertook a quotation exercise utilising the Crescent Purchasing Consortium's quotation tool to procure 30 Promethean Nickel 75" Touch screen panels.
- The Academy undertook a quotation exercise utilising the Crescent Purchasing Consortium's quotation tool for the for upgrading its servers. The delivery and installation were a post year end event.
- Following a Department for Education, Schools Commercial Team event "CPC and Dukefield Energy –
 Utilities Supplies" event the Academy via Crescent Purchasing Consortium used the services of Dukefield
 Energy for obtaining quotations and ongoing support after signing for three year gas and electricity contracts
 through a single supplier.
- The Academy has also provided value to its community by running two Holiday Activity Camps in conjunction with "Bring it on Brum and Streetgames". This provides support to children who receive free school meals through holiday periods.
- The Academy maintains a permanent and continuous register of all items of furniture, equipment, including IT vehicles and other assets.
- Three-year contracts have been entered to achieve reduced cost where it would benefit the trust.

4. Maximising Income generation

The academy continues to explore opportunities for income generation through its catering operation and the use of its property and facilities. These are not always restricted to cash income but also whether the Academy can gain a benefit for services, for example coaching expertise from sporting clubs for the benefit of our students. The Academy wishes to expand its community use programme and is keen that our students can access clubs that they would not perhaps otherwise be aware of or be able to access or have considered. The Academy has commenced delivering this via letting its field and pitches be utilised at the weekend.

The Academy reduces the cost of its catering facilities through shared use by the adjacent local authority controlled primary school. Additionally, the Academy's Site Manager and caretaking team are shared by the adjacent local authority controlled primary school.

The Academy also derives an income from the let of a former Caretaker House.

5. Summary

We will continue as a priority our relentless pursuit of students reaching their full potential. The Academy's will continue to self-evaluate with rigour and focus on how we best resource our development plan. The Academy will continue to work to improve the achievements for all students both academically and its role to prepare them

Governance Statement (continued)

Review of value for money (continued)

to make a positive contribution to society. We aim to become an "outstanding academy" without losing our identity and multinational inclusive intake. We will continue to build upon successes and serve our community well

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risks of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively, and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in George Dixon Academy for the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to handle risk

The board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy is exposed together with the operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of Trustees is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Academy's significant risks that has been in place for the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of Trustees.

The risk and control framework

The Academy's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In particular, it includes:

- comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which are reviewed and agreed by the board of Trustees
- regular reviews by the Finance and Audit Committee of reports which indicate financial performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes
- setting targets to measure financial and other performance
- clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines
- identification and management of risks

The Board of Trustees has decided to employ RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP as internal auditor.

The auditor's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the academy trust's financial systems. The Auditor reports to the board of trustees on the operation of systems of control and on the discharge of the board of trustees' financial responsibilities.

On a semi-annual basis, the internal auditor reports to the board of Trustees through the finance and audit committee on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Trustees' financial responsibilities.

During the year to 31st August 2022 the internal audit function (RSM) has delivered work on the Academy's Key Operational Controls. This audit has encompassed both Governance and Finance.

Previous Audits undertaken by RSM have included Key Financial Controls, Framework for Compliance with Legal Requirements- Fraud, Whistleblowing, Bribery; Student Funding Records; Governance: Core Processes;

Governance Statement (continued)

The risk and control framework (continued)

Human Resources: Recruitment, Selection and Appraisals; Framework for Compliance with Legal Requirements: Data Protection and Records Retention.

Review of effectiveness

As accounting officer, the Headteacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

- the work of the internal auditor;
- the financial management and governance self-assessment process or the school management self-assessment tool;
- the school resource management self-assessment tool;
- the work of the executive managers within the Academy who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control framework.
- the work of the external auditors:

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal control by the finance and audit committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on A

Sir Robert Dowling Chair of Trustees Mr Nutvinder Mann

Heagteacher and Accounting Officer

Decamber 2022 and signed on their behalf by:

Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As accounting officer of George Dixon Academy I have considered my responsibility to notify the Academy board of Trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the Academy, under the funding agreement in place between the Academy and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration I have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2021.

I confirm that I and the Academy board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of all funds by the Academy, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the Academy's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2021.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of Truetees and ESFA.

Mr T Mann

Headmaster and Accounting Officer

Date: 7 December 2022

Statement of Trustees' responsibilities For the Year Ended 31 August 2022

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law, the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022;
- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 7 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Sir Robert Dowling Chair of Trustees

Independent Auditors' Report on the financial statements to the Members of George Dixon Academy

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of George Dixon Academy (the 'academy') for the year ended 31 August 2022 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Cash Flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland', the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy's affairs as at 31 August 2022 and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;
- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Academy in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Independent Auditors' Report on the financial statements to the Members of George Dixon Academy (continued)

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our Auditors' Report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the Annual Report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the Trustees' Report including the Strategic Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
- the Trustees' Report and the Strategic Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' Report including the Strategic Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
- certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the directors of the Academy for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Academy or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Independent Auditors' Report on the financial statements to the Members of George Dixon Academy (continued)

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' Report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

Our approach to identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations, was as follows:

- the senior statutory auditor ensured that the engagement team collectively had the appropriate competence, capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations;
- we identified the laws and regulations applicable to the company through discussions with directors and other management, and from our commercial knowledge and experience of the Academy sector;
- we focused on specific laws and regulations which we considered may have a direct material effect on the financial statements or the operations of the company, including the financial reporting legislation, Companies Act 2006, taxation legislation, anti-bribery, employment, and environmental and health and safety legislation;
- we assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations identified above through making enquiries of management and inspecting legal correspondence; and
- identified laws and regulations were communicated within the audit team regularly and the team remained alert to instances of non-compliance throughout the audit.

We assessed the susceptibility of the company's financial statements to material misstatement, including obtaining an understanding of how fraud might occur, by:

- making enquiries of management as to where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud, their knowledge of actual, suspected and alleged fraud; and
- considering the internal controls in place to mitigate risks of fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations.

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we:

- performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships;
- tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions;
- assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates set out in Note 3 were indicative of potential bias; and
- investigated the rationale behind significant or unusual transactions.

In response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we designed procedures which included, but were not limited to:

- agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation;
- reading the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;
- enquiring of management as to actual and potential litigation and claims; and
- reviewing correspondence with HMRC, relevant regulators and the company's legal advisors.

Independent Auditors' Report on the financial statements to the Members of George Dixon Academy (continued)

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including those leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk increases the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance. The risk is also greater regarding irregularities occurring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud involves intentional concealment, forgery, collusion, omission or misrepresentation.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our Auditors' Report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Academy's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy's members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' Report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy and its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Andrew Morris FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Dains Audit Limited

Statutory Auditor Chartered Accountants

Birmingham

7 December 2022

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to George Dixon Academy and the Education & Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 27 July 2022 and further to the requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by George Dixon Academy during the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to George Dixon Academy and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to George Dixon Academy and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than George Dixon Academy and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of George Dixon Academy's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of George Dixon Academy's funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 1 September 2012 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1 September 2021, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the Academy's income and expenditure.

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to George Dixon Academy and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (continued)

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

anna Rudit Limited

Dains Audit Limited

Statutory Auditor Chartered Accountants

Birmingham

Date: 7 December 2022

Statement of financial activities (incorporating income and expenditure account) For the Year Ended 31 August 2022

No	Unrestricted funds 2022 ite £	Restricted funds 2022 £	Restricted fixed asset funds 2022 £	Total funds 2022 £	Total funds 2021 £
Income from:					
Donations and capital grants	4 86,805	50,711	49,865	187,381	777,531
Other trading activities	9,676	-	-	9,676	8,400
Investments	7 964	-	-	964	2,035
Charitable activities:	•				
Funding for the academy trust's educational operations	-	7,818,425	· -	7,818,425	7,483,890 ·
Total income	97,445	7,869,136	49,865	8,016,446	8,271,856
Expenditure on: Charitable activities: Academy trust educational	55,936	8,374,233	£74 7£9	9,001,927	8,219,333
operations	55,936	0,374,233	571,758	9,001,927	0,219,333
Total expenditure	55,936	8,374,233	571,758	9,001,927	8,219,333
Net income / (expenditure) Fund transfers 1	41,509 7 (402,812)	(505,097) 20,421	(521,893) 382,391	(985,481) -	52,523 -
Actuarial gains	, , ,	ŕ	,		
	5 -	3,898,000	. •	3,898,000	(477,000)
Net movement in					
funds	(361,303)	3,413,324 	(139,502) 	2,912,519 	(424,477) ————
Reconciliation of funds:					
Total funds brought forward	1 074 240	(4 552 740)	18,815,828	16 227 200	16 661 766
Net movement in funds	1,974,210 (361,303)	(4,552,749) 3,413,324	(139,502)	16,237,289 2,912,519	16,661,766 (424,477)
	(301,303)	3,413,324	(135,502)	Z,31Z,U13	(724,477)
Total funds carried forward	1,612,907	(1,139,425)	18,676,326	19,149,808	16,237,289

The Statement of Financial Activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 39 to 68 form part of these financial statements.

George Dixon Academy

(A Company Limited by Guarantee) Registered number: 08173271

Balance Sheet

As at 31 August 2022

	Note	•	2022 £		2021 £
Fixed assets			•		
Tangible assets Current assets	14		18,617,434	, .	18,261,999
Debtors Cash at bank and in hand	15	385,148 3,398,600		961,727 2,386,557	
		3,783,748		3,348,284	
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year	16	(2,098,374)		(806,994)	
Net current assets			1,685,374		2,541,290
Total assets less current liabilities			20,302,808		20,803,289
Defined benefit pension scheme liability	25		(1,153,000)		(4,566,000)
Total net assets			19,149,808		16,237,289
Funds of the Academy Restricted funds:		·			
Restricted fixed asset funds	17	18,676,326		18,815,828	
Restricted income funds	17	13,575		13,251	
Restricted funds excluding pension liability	17	18,689,901		18,829,079	
Pension reserve	17	(1,153,000)		(4,566,000)	
Total restricted funds	17		17,536,901		14,263,079
Unrestricted income funds	17		1,612,907		1,974,210
Total funds			19,149,808		16,237,289

The financial statements on pages 36 to 68 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue on 07 December 2022 and are signed on their behalf, by:

Sir R Dowling Chair of Trustees

The notes on pages 39 to 68 form part of these financial statements.

Statement of Cash Flows For the Year Ended 31 August 2022

Cash flows from operating activities	Note	2022 £	2021 £
Cash nows from operating activities			
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities	19	1,888,404	(121,396)
Cash flows from investing activities	20	(876,361)	(332,223)
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year		1,012,043	(453,619)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year		2,386,557	2,840,176
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year	21, 22	3,398,600	2,386,557
•	:		

The notes on pages 39 to 68 form part of these financial statements

1. General information

George Dixon Academy is a company limited by guarantee incorporated in England and Wales. The registered number is 08173271 and its registered office is Portland Road, Birmingham, B16 9GD. The principal activity of the academy is given in the Trustees' Report.

2. Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

2.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Academy, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

2.2 Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Academy to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the Academy has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Academy's ability to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

2.3 Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the Balance Sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance Sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended.

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Income (continued)

Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provided to the Academy which amounts to a donation is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-related conditions) where receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably.

Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent the Academy has provided the goods or services.

Donated fixed assets (excluding transfers on conversion or into the Academy)

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to measure this reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is recognised as 'Income from Donations and Capital Grants' and a corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance with the Academy's accounting policies.

2.4 Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

• Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the Academy's educational operations, including support costs and costs relating to the governance of the Academy apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

2.5 Interest receivable

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measured reliably by the Academy; this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or payable by the institution with whom the funds are deposited.

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.6 Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £500 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Freehold property

Furniture and equipment Plant and machinery

Computer equipment

Motor vehicles

- 2% straight-line basis

20% straight-line basis20% straight-line basis

- 33.3% straight-line basis

- 25% straight-line basis

Freehold land is not depreciated.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.

2.7 Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered. Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

2.8 Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

2.9 Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance Sheet date as a result of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide.

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.10 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Academy has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

2.11 Financial instruments

The Academy only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and financial liabilities of the Academy and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 15. Prepayments are not financial instruments. Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 16. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

2.12 Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities on a straight line basis over the lease term.

2.13 Taxation

The Academy is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the Academy is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme ("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees' working lives with the Academy in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the Academy in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each Balance Sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

2.15 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects of the Academy at the discretion of the Trustees.

Designated funds comprise unrestricted funds that have been set aside by the Trustees for particular purposes. The aim and use of each designated fund is set out in the notes to the financial statements.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund.

3. Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 25, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2022. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Critical areas of judgement:

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires the Trustees to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results in the future could differ from those estimates. In this regard, the Trustees believe that the critical accounting policies where judgements or estimating are necessarily applied are summarised below.

Depreciation and residual values

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated over the useful lives taking into account residual values where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed annually and may vary depending on a numer of factors. Residual values consider such things as future market conditions, the remaining life of the asset and projected disposal values, and plans to dispose of an asset before the previously expected date.

Notes to the Financial Statements For the Year Ended 31 August 2022

4. Donations and capital grants

	Unrestricted funds 2022 £	Restricted funds 2022	Restricted fixed asset funds 2022 £	Total funds 2022 £
Donations	11,198	-	28,392	39,590
Capital Grants	-	-	21,473	21,473
Other incoming resources	75,607	50,711	-	126,318
	86,805	50,711	49,865	187,381
	Unrestricted funds 2021 £	Restricted funds 2021 £	Restricted fixed asset funds 2021 £	Total funds 2021 £
Donations	2,389	8,000	127,958	138,347
Capital Grants	-	-	580,542	580,542
Other incoming resources	55,740	2,902	-	58,642
	58,129	10,902	708,500	777,531

Notes to the Financial Statements For the Year Ended 31 August 2022

5. Funding for the Academy's charitable activities

Educational operations	Restricted funds 2022 £	Total funds 2022 £
DfE/ESFA grants		
General Annual Grant (GAG)	6,975,424	6,975,424
Other DfE/ESFA grants		•
Pupil Premium	580,864	580,864
Teachers' Pension grant	6,244	6,244
Teachers' Pay grant	18,150	18,150
Others	125,688	125,688
	7,706,370	7,706,370
Other Government grants		
Other Local Authority income	1,000	1,000
	1,000	1,000
Other income from the Academy's educational operations COVID-19 additional funding (DfE/ESFA)	6,030	6,030
Recovery Premium	85,170	85,170
Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 funding	19,855	19,855
	105,025	105,025
	7,818,425	7,818,425
·	7,818,425	7,818,425

5. Funding for the Academy's charitable activities (continued)

	Restricted funds 2021 £	Total funds 2021 £
Educational operations		
DfE/ESFA grants		
General Annual Grant (GAG)	6,418,095	6,418,095
Other DfE/ESFA grants		
Pupil Premium	550,042	550,042
Teachers' Pension grant	213,874	213,874
Teachers' Pay grant	66,995	66,995
Others	108,534	108,534
	7,357,540	7,357,540
Other Government grants		
Other Local Authority income	6,032	6,032
	6,032	6,032
Other income from the Academy's educational operations	13,908	13,908
COVID-19 additional funding (DfE/ESFA)	74.800	71 000
Catch-up Premium	71,800	71,800
Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 funding	34,610	34,610
	106,410	106,410
	7,483,890	7,483,890
	7,483,890	7,483,890

The Academy Trust received and spent £85,170 (2021 - £71,800) of funding in respect of COVID-19 Recovery/Catch-up Premium funding.

6.	Other trading activities		
		Unrestricted funds 2022 £	Total funds 2022 £
	Lettings income	9,676	9,676
		Unrestricted funds 2021 £	Total funds 2021 £
	Lettings income	<u>8,400</u>	8,400
7.	Investment income		
		Unrestricted funds 2022 £	Total funds 2022 £
	Bank interest received	964	964
		Unrestricted funds 2021 £	Total funds 2021 £
	Bank interest received	2,035	2,035

8.	Expenditure				
		Staff Costs 2022 £	Premises 2022 £	Other 2022 £	Total 2022 £
	Educational operations:				
	Direct costs	5,285,594	399,073	1,066,974	6,751,641
	Support costs	1,716,840	447,166	86,280	2,250,286
		7,002,434	846,239	1,153,254	9,001,927
		Staff Costs 2021 £	Premises 2021 £	Other 2021 £	Total 2021 £
	Educational operations:			·	
	Direct costs	5,402,570	367,971	465,006	6,235,547
	Support costs	1,181,491	330,937	471,358	1,983,786
		6,584,061	698,908	936,364	8,219,333 ==================================
9.	Analysis of expenditure by activities				
			Activities undertaken directly 2022	Support costs 2022 £	Total funds 2022 £
	Educational operations		6,751,641	2,250,286	9,001,927
			Activities undertaken directly 2021	Support costs 2021 £	Total funds 2021 £
	Educational operations		6,235,547	1,983,786	8,219,333

9. Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of direct costs

Total funds 2022	Total funds 2021 £
Staff costs 5,692,594	5,402,570
Depreciation 571,758	487,965
Educational supplies 96,830	73,814
Examination fees 123,077	61,920
Staff development and other staff costs 17,440	12,932
Technology costs 99,182	103,636
Consultancy 35,299	11,886
Other costs 80,736	24,918
Recruitment and other staff expenses 34,725	55,906
6,751,641	6,235,547
Analysis of support costs	
Total funds 2022	Total funds 2021 £
LGPS finance costs 78,000	58,000
Staff costs 1,309,840	1,181,491
Catering 223,472	152,195
Travel, subsistence and expenses 2,313	2,359
Other costs 131,476	197,475
Maintenance of premises and special facilities 114,589	75,677
Cleaning and caretaking 16,104	18,425
Rates 10,633	18,716
Security 280	-
Energy 241,972	153,798
Legal and professional 53,833	55,386
Transport 4,189	5,942
Other premises costs 63,585	64,322
2,250,286	1,983,786

Notes to the Financial Statements For the Year Ended 31 August 2022

10.	Net income/(expenditure)		
	Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:		
		2022	2021
		£	£
	Operating lease rentals	11,683	6,869
	Depreciation of tangible fixed assets	571,758	487,964
	Fees paid to auditors for:		
	- audit	8,325	7,325
	- other services	760	725 ————
11.	Staff		
	a. Staff costs		
	Staff costs during the year were as follows:		
		2022 £	2021 £
	Wages and salaries	4,839,057	4,680,189
	Social security costs	529,200	487,995
	Pension costs	1,507,528	1,300,106
		6,875,785	6,468,290
	Agency staff costs	92,255	115,771
	Staff restructuring costs	34,394	-
		7,002,434	6,584,061
	Staff restructuring costs comprise:		
		2022 £	2021 £
	Severance payments	34,394	-
		34,394	

Notes to the Financial Statements For the Year Ended 31 August 2022

11. Staff (continued)

b. Severance payments

The Academy paid £34,394 severance payments in the year (2021 - £Nil), disclosed in the following bands:

	2022	2021
	No.	No.
£25,001 - £50,000	1	-
•		

c. Special staff severance payments

Included in staff restructuring costs are non-statutory/non-contractual severance payments of £34,394 (2021 - £Nil). Individually, the payments were £34,394 (2021 - £Nil).

d. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Academy during the year was as follows:

	2022 No.	2021 No.
Teaching staff	86	82
Support staff	37	38
Administrative staff	11	. 11
	134	131
The average headcount expressed as full-time equivalents was:		
	2022 No.	2021 No.
Teaching staff	82	80
Support staff	30	23
Administrative staff	.10	10
	122	113

11. Staff (continued)

e. Higher paid staff.

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000 was:

	2022 No.	2021 No.
In the band £60,001 - £70,000	7	4
In the band £70,001 - £80,000	3	2
In the band £90,001 - £100,000	-	1
In the band £130,001 - £140,000	1	1

f. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy comprise the Trustees and the senior management team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to the Academy was £238,989 (2021 - £210,180).

12. Trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment with the Academy. The principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment. The value of Trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

		2022 £	2021 £
Mr T Mann, Headteacher and Accounting	Remuneration	125,000 - 130,000	~
Officer Pro Tem (appointed 1 October 2021)	Pension contributions paid	25,000 - 30.000	
Mr A Hamilton, Headmaster and Accounting Officer (resigned 30 September 2021)	Remuneration	10,000 - 15,000	135,000 - 140,000
Officer (resigned 30 September 2021)	Pension contributions paid	0 - 5,000	30,000 -
	Other benefits	30,000 - 35,000	35,000
Mrs J Burke-Hetherington, Staff Trustee	Remuneration	00,000	10,000 - 15,000
Mr D Tunney, Staff Trustee	Pension contributions paid Remuneration		0 - 5,000 5,000 - 10,000
	Pension contributions paid		0 - 5,000

During the year ended 31 August 2022, no Trustee expenses have been incurred (2021 - £NIL).

13. Trustees' and Officers' insurance

The Academy has opted into the Department of Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA), an alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees and officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.

14. Tangible fixed assets

	Freehold land and buildings £	Furniture and equipment £	Plant and machinery	Computer equipment £	Motor vehicles £	Total £
Cost or valuation						
At 1 September 2021	20,873,801	562,483	120,145	977,704	28,500	22,562,633
Additions	624,936	142,037	-	160,220	-	927,193
Disposals	•	(2,762)	-	(111,448)	-	(114,210)
At 31 August 2022	21,498,737	701,758	120,145	1,026,476	28,500	23,375,616
Depreciation .						
At 1 September 2021	3,012,836	535,067	42,630	697,038	13,063	4,300,634
Charge for the year	375,044	11,099	24,029	154,461	7,125	571,758
On disposals	•	(2,762)	. -	(111,448)	-	(114,210)
At 31 August 2022	3,387,880	543,404	66,659	740,051	20,188	4,758,182
Net book value						
At 31 August 2022	18,110,857	158,354	53,486	286,425	8,312 =====	18,617,434
At 31 August 2021	17,860,965	27,416	77,515	280,666	15,437	18,261,999

Included in land and buildings is freehold land at cost of £2,829,050 (2020 - £2,829,050) which is not depreciated.

Notes to the Financial Statements For the Year Ended 31 August 2022

15.	Debtors		
		2022 £	2021 £
	Due within one year	_	_
•	Trade debtors	32,412	15,742
	VAT repayable	49,456	48,225
	Prepayments and accrued income	303,280	897,760
		385,148	961,727
16.	Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year		
		2022 £	2021 £
	Trade creditors	1,707,733	554,471
	Accruals and deferred income	390,641	252,523
		2,098,374	806,994
		2022 £	2021 £
	Deferred income at 1 September 2021	11,332	23,581
	Resources deferred during the year	106,542	11,332
	Amounts released from previous periods	(11,332)	(23,581)
	•		

At the balance sheet date the academy was holding funds of £106,542 received in advance for National Tuition Funding, trip income and lettings.

Notes to the Financial Statements For the Year Ended 31 August 2022

17. Statement of funds

•	Balance at 1 September 2021 £	Income £	Expenditure £	Transfers in/out	Gains/ (Losses) £	Balance at 31 August 2022 £
Unrestricted funds						
Designated funds						
Roof repairs	350,000	-	-	(150,000)	-	200,000
Plant and other expenditure relating to						·
premises	650,000	-		(32,399)	-	617,601
ICT refreshment	220,972	-	-	(113,493)	-	107,479
Fire compliance	150,000	-	-	(106,920)	-	43,080
	1,370,972	•	-	(402,812)	-	968,160
General funds						
Unrestricted funds	603,238	97,445	(55,936)	<u>-</u>		644,747
Total Unrestricted funds	1,974,210	97,445	(55,936)	(402,812)	-	1,612,907

17.	Statement of	funds	(continued)
-----	--------------	-------	-------------

Statement of funds	(continued)					
	Balance at 1 September 2021 £	Income £	Expenditure £	Transfers in/out £	Gains/ (Losses) £	Balance at 31 August 2022 £
Restricted general funds						
General Annual Grant (GAG)	-	7,074,922	(7,085,603)	20,421	-	9,740
Pupil Premium	-	580,864	(580,864)	-	-	-
Teachers' Pension grant	_	6,244	(6,244)	_	-	_
Teachers' Pay grant	-	18,150	(18,150)	-	-	-
Other DfE/ESFA grants	-	24,990	(24,990)	-	-	-
Other Local Authority income	-	1,200	(1,200)	-	-	-
George Dixon . scholarship	13,251	-	(9,416)	-	-	3,835
COVID-19 recovery premium	-	85,170	(85,170)	-	-	_
Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 funding	-	19,855	(19,855)	-	-	· ·
Other funding	-	57,741	(57,741)	-	-	-
Pension reserve	(4,566,000)	-	(485,000)	-	3,898,000	(1,153,000)
	(4,552,749)	7,869,136	(8,374,233)	20,421	3,898,000	(1,139,425)
Restricted fixed asset funds						
Transfer on conversion DfE / ESFA capital	16,299,991	-	(320,737)	-	-	15,979,254
grants	2,402,809	21,473	(203,394)	381,339	-	2,602,227
Gifted assets	113,028	28,392	(47,627)	1,052	-	94,845
	18,815,828	49,865	(571,758)	382,391	-	18,676,326
Total Restricted funds	14,263,079	7,919,001	(8,945,991)	402,812	3,898,000	17,536,901
Total funds	16,237,289	8,016,446	(9,001,927)	-	3,898,000	19,149,808
						

Notes to the Financial Statements For the Year Ended 31 August 2022

17. Statement of funds (continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Roof repairs

To repair the roof where the Academy suffers from water ingress in many areas. This was not in the scope of the final Building Schools for the Future (BSF) cost plan. The fund is based on a 10+ year building programme. This fund includes the Academy Trust's contribution to Condition Improvement Funded (CIF) Phase 2 Roof Project and the contribution to the Phase 3 Bid.

Plant and other expenditure relating to premises

This reserve is for Plant, Premises and other Assets that will require repair or replacement.

ICT refreshment

The Academy with effect from 31st August 2019 early terminated the Building Schools for the Future, ICT Management Contract. ICT refreshments and upgrades will no longer be funded from a Building for the Future Local Choice Fund, the effect of which was that the Academy is having to fund these from its own resources.

Fire compliance

This reserve is for fire compliance works that are required following the fire risk assessment.

Restricted general funds

This fund represents grants and other income received for the Academy's operational activities and development.

Pension reserve

The pension reserve included wihtin restricted general funds represents the Academy's share of the pension liability arising on the LGPS pension fund.

Restricted fixed asset funds

This fund represents grants and other income received to carry out works of a capital nature.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy was not subject to a limit on the amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2022.

17. Statement of funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

	Balance at 1 September 2020 £	. Income £	Expenditure	Transfers in/out £	Gains/ (Losses)	Balance at 31 August 2021
Unrestricted funds	~	, –		_	_	_
Designated funds						
Roof repairs	500,000	-	-	(150,000)	-	350,000
Plant and other expenditure relating to						
premises	699,287	-	-	(49,287)	-	650,000
ICT refreshment	440,426	-	-	(219,454)	-	220,972
Fire compliance	-	-	-	150 <u>,</u> 000	-	150,000
•	1,639,713	_	-	(268,741)	-	1,370,972
				•		
General funds						
Unrestricted funds	464,766	68,564	(86,309)	156,217		603,238
Total Unrestricted funds	2,104,479	68,564	(86,309)	(112,524)	-	1,974,210

Notes to the Financial Statements For the Year Ended 31 August 2022

17. Statement of funds (continued)

	Balance at					Balance at
	September 2020 £	Income £	Expenditure £	Transfers in/out £	Gains/ (Losses) £	31 August 2021
Restricted general funds						
General Annual Grant (GAG)	83,187	6,418,095	(6,225,569)	(275,713)	-	-
Pupil Premium	-	550,042	(550,042)	-	-	-
Teachers' Pension grant	-	213,874	(213,874)	-	-	-
Teachers' Pay grant	-	66,995	(66,995)	-	-	-
Other DfE/ESFA grants	-	108,534	(108,534)	-	-	-
Other Local Authority income	-	6,032	(6,032)	_	-	-
George Dixon scholarship	36,044	13,908	(36,701)	-	-	13,251
COVID-19 catch-up premium	-	71,800	(71,800)	-	-	-
Other DfE/ESFA COVID- 19 funding	-	34,610	(34,610)	-	-	-
Other funding	-	10,902	(10,902)	-	-	-
Pension reserve	(3,769,000)	-	(320,000)	-	(477,000)	(4,566,000)
	(3,649,769)	7,494,792	(7,645,059)	(275,713)	(477,000)	(4,552,749)
Restricted fixed asset funds						
Transfer on conversion	16,620,728	-	(320,737)	-	-	16,299,991
DfE / ESFA capital grants	1,586,328	580,542	(152,298)	388,237	-	2,402,809
Gifted assets	-	127,958	(14,930)	-	-	113,028
	18,207,056	708,500	(487,965)	388,237		18,815,828
Total Restricted funds	14,557,287	8,203,292	(8,133,024)	112,524	(477,000)	14,263,079
Total funds	16,661,766	8,271,856	(8,219,333)	-	(477,000)	16,237,289

Notes to the Financial Statements For the Year Ended 31 August 2022

18. Analysis of net assets between funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - current year

	Unrestricted funds 2022 £	Restricted funds 2022	Restricted fixed asset funds 2022	Total funds 2022 £
Tangible fixed assets	-	-	18,617,434	18,617,434
Current assets	1,612,907	2,091,087	79,754	3,783,748
Creditors due within one year	-	(2,077,512)	(20,862)	(2,098,374)
Provisions for liabilities and charges	-	(1,153,000)	-	(1,153,000)
Total	1,612,907	(1,139,425)	18,676,326	19,149,808
Analysis of net assets between funds - pr	ior year			

	Unrestricted funds 2021 £	Restricted funds 2021 £	Restricted fixed asset funds 2021 £	Total funds 2021 £
Tangible fixed assets	-	-	18,261,999	18,261,999
Current assets	1,974,210	784,981	589,093	3,348,284
Creditors due within one year	-	(771,730)	(35,264)	(806,994)
Provisions for liabilities and charges	-	(4,566,000)	-	(4,566,000)
Total	1,974,210	(4,552,749)	18,815,828	16,237,289

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost T8,000 Decrease/(increase) in debtors (Decrease)/increase in creditors Capital grants from DfE and other capital income Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 1,888,404 2022 2021 £ Interest receivable Purchase of tangible fixed assets Capital grants from DfE Group Capital funding received from sponsors and others Net cash used in investing activities (876,361) 262,000 262,000 270,000 270,000 288,000 291,377 292,202 2021 £ £ £ (898,898) (934,800)	19.	Reconciliation of net (expenditure)/income to net cash flow from operation	ng activities	
Adjustments for: Depreciation charges 571,758 487,965 Bank interest received (964) (2,035) Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable 407,000 262,000 Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 78,000 58,000 Decrease/(increase) in debtors 576,579 (221,464) (Decrease)/increase in creditors 1,291,377 (49,885) Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (49,865) (708,500) Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 1,888,404 (121,396) 20. Cash flows from investing activities 2022 2021 £ £ Interest receivable 964 2,035 Purchase of tangible fixed assets (898,898) (934,800) Capital grants from DfE Group 21,473 580,542 Capital funding received from sponsors and others 100 20,000 Net cash used in investing activities (876,361) (332,223) 21. Analysis of cash and cash equivalents Cash in hand and at bank 3,398,600 2,386,557				
Depreciation charges			(985,481)	52,523
Bank interest received (964) (2,035)		Adjustments for:		
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost T8,000 T8,00		Depreciation charges	571,758	487,965
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost Decrease/(increase) in debtors Decrease/(increase) in deptors Decrease/(increase		Bank interest received	(964)	(2,035)
Decrease/(increase) in debtors		Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable	407,000	262,000
(Decrease)/increase in creditors 1,291,377 (49,885) Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (49,865) (708,500) Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 1,888,404 (121,396) 20. Cash flows from investing activities 2022 2021 £ £ £ 2021 £ £ Interest receivable 964 2,035 2035 Purchase of tangible fixed assets (898,898) (934,800) Capital grants from DfE Group 21,473 580,542 580,542 Capital funding received from sponsors and others 100 20,000 Net cash used in investing activities (876,361) (332,223) 21. Analysis of cash and cash equivalents 2022 2021 £ £ Cash in hand and at bank 3,398,600 2,386,557		Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost	78,000	58,000
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (49,865) (708,500) Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 1,888,404 (121,396) 20. Cash flows from investing activities 2022 2021 £ Interest receivable 964 2,035 £ £ £ Purchase of tangible fixed assets (898,898) (934,800) Capital grants from DfE Group 21,473 580,542 Capital funding received from sponsors and others 100 20,000 Net cash used in investing activities (876,361) (332,223) 21. Analysis of cash and cash equivalents 2022 2021 £ £ Cash in hand and at bank 3,398,600 2,386,557		Decrease/(increase) in debtors	576,579	(221,464)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 1,888,404 (121,396) 20. Cash flows from investing activities 2022 2021 £ £ Interest receivable 964 2,035 Purchase of tangible fixed assets (898,898) (934,800) Capital grants from DfE Group 21,473 580,542 Capital funding received from sponsors and others 100 20,000 Net cash used in investing activities (876,361) (332,223) 21. Analysis of cash and cash equivalents 2022 2021 £ £ Cash in hand and at bank 3,398,600 2,386,557		(Decrease)/increase in creditors	1,291,377	(49,885)
20. Cash flows from investing activities 2022 2021 £ £ Interest receivable Purchase of tangible fixed assets (898,898) (934,800) Capital grants from DfE Group 21,473 580,542 Capital funding received from sponsors and others 100 20,000 Net cash used in investing activities (876,361) (332,223) 21. Analysis of cash and cash equivalents 2022 2021 £ £ £ Cash in hand and at bank 3,398,600 2,386,557		Capital grants from DfE and other capital income	(49,865)	(708,500)
2022 2021 £ £ £ E E E E E E E		Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities	1,888,404	(121,396)
E E	20.	Cash flows from investing activities		
Purchase of tangible fixed assets Capital grants from DfE Group Capital funding received from sponsors and others Net cash used in investing activities (876,361) (332,223) 21. Analysis of cash and cash equivalents Cash in hand and at bank (898,898) (934,800) 20,000 (876,361) (332,223) 2021 £ £ £ £ £ 2022 2021				
Capital grants from DfE Group Capital funding received from sponsors and others Net cash used in investing activities (876,361) Analysis of cash and cash equivalents Cash in hand and at bank 21,473 20,000 (876,361) (332,223) 222 2021 £ £ £ Cash in hand and at bank 3,398,600 2,386,557		Interest receivable	964	2,035
Capital funding received from sponsors and others Net cash used in investing activities (876,361) (332,223) 21. Analysis of cash and cash equivalents Cash in hand and at bank Cash in hand and at bank 100 (876,361) (332,223) 2022 £ £ £		Purchase of tangible fixed assets	(898,898)	(934,800)
Net cash used in investing activities (876,361) (332,223) 21. Analysis of cash and cash equivalents 2022 2021 £ £ Cash in hand and at bank 3,398,600 2,386,557		Capital grants from DfE Group	21,473	580,542
21. Analysis of cash and cash equivalents 2022 2021 £ £ Cash in hand and at bank 3,398,600 2,386,557		Capital funding received from sponsors and others	100	20,000
2022 2021 £ £ £ £ Cash in hand and at bank 3,398,600 2,386,557		Net cash used in investing activities	(876,361)	(332,223)
£ £ Cash in hand and at bank 3,398,600 2,386,557	21.	Analysis of cash and cash equivalents		
Cash in hand and at bank 3,398,600 2,386,557			_	
Total cash and cash equivalents 3,398,600 2,386,557		Cash in hand and at bank		
		Total cash and cash equivalents	3,398,600	2,386,557

Notes to the Financial Statements For the Year Ended 31 August 2022

22. Analysis of changes in net debt

·	At 1 September 2021 £	Cash flows £	At 31 August 2022 £
Cash at bank and in hand	2,386,557	1,012,043	3,398,600
,	2,386,557	1,012,043	3,398,600

23. Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a member.

24. Capital commitments

	2022 £	2021 £
Contracted for but not provided in these financial statements		
Acquisition of tangible fixed assets	33,428	168,238

25. Pension commitments

The Academy's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by West Midlands Pension Fund. Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March 2019.

There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial year.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Teachers' Pension Budgeting and Valuation Account

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

- employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy)
- total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a notional past service deficit of £22,000 million
- the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI, assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £756,000 (2021 - £747,000).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website (https://www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The Academy has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The Academy has set out above the information available on the scheme.

25. Pension commitments (continued)

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2022 was £383,000 (2021 - £359,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £306,000 (2021 - £289,000) and employees' contributions totalled £ 77,000 (2021 - £70,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 21.0% per cent for employers and 5.5% to 12.5% per cent for employees.

As described in note the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the Academy, who were the employees transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who were eligible to, and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in respect of employees who transferred on conversion represents their cumulative service at both the predecessor school and the Academy at the balance sheet date.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Principal actuarial assumptions

	2022	2021
	%	%
Rate of increase in salaries	4.05	3.90
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation	3.05	2.90
Discount rate for scheme liabilities	4.25	1.65

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

	2022 Years	2021 Years
Retiring today		
Males	21.2	21.6
Females	23.6	24.0
Retiring in 20 years		
Males	22.9	23.4
Females	25.4	25.8

5. Pension commitments (continued)		
Sensitivity analysis - present value of total obligation		
	⁻ 2022 £000	2021 £000
Discount rate +0.1%	(120)	(220)
Discount rate -0.1%	120	226
Mortality assumption - 1 year increase	207	372
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease	(207)	(355
CPI rate +0.1%	102	197
CPI rate -0.1%	(102)	(192)
Share of scheme assets		
The Academy's share of the assets in the scheme was:		
	At 31 August 2022 £	At 31 August 2021 £
Equities	2,695,000	2,323,000
Bonds	845,000	548,000
Property	322,000	268,000
Cash and other liquid assets	161,000	140,000
Other	-	534,000
Total market value of assets	4,023,000	3,813,000
The actual return on scheme assets was £(122,000) (2021 - £547,000).	,	
The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities are as fol	lows:	
	2022 £	2021 £
Current service cost	(713,000)	(551,000)
Interest income	66,000	50,000
Interest cost	(144,000)	(108,000)
Total amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities	(791,000)	(609,000)

Notes to the Financial Statements For the Year Ended 31 August 2022

25. Pension commitments (continued)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:

	2022 £	2021 £
At 1 September	8,379,000	6,709,000
Current service cost	713,000	551,000
Interest cost	144,000	108,000
Employee contributions	77,000	70,000
Actuarial (gains)/losses	(4,086,000)	974,000
Benefits paid	(51,000)	(33,000)
At 31 August	5,176,000	8,379,000

Changes in the fair value of the Academy's share of scheme assets were as follows:

	2022 £	2021 £
At 1 September	3,813,000	2,940,000
Interest income	66,000	50,000
Actuarial (losses)/gains	(188,000)	497,000
Employer contributions	306,000	289,000
Employee contributions	77,000	70,000
Benefits paid	(51,000)	(33,000)
At 31 August	4,023,000	3,813,000

26. Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2022 the Academy had commitments to make future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

	2022 £	2021 £
Not later than 1 year	10,007	11,683
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years	4,170	8,406
	14,177	20,089

Notes to the Financial Statements For the Year Ended 31 August 2022

27. Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Academy and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the Academy's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactions.